notre dame report

contents

the university

305 Endowed Chairs Named in Theology 305 Wenig New Development Director for NYC

faculty notes

306 Honors 306 Activities

documentation

308 Summary of the Board of Trustees Meeting November 16, 1984 309 Library Hours - Christmas Vacation

advanced studies

310 Information Circulars

310 --Humanities

314 --Fine and Performing Arts

314 -- Social Sciences

315 --General

316 Current Publications and Other Scholarly Works

318 Closing Dates for Selected Sponsored Programs

B455
December 14, 1984

December 14, 1984

the university

endowed chairs named in theology

Two endowed chairs have been filled in the University's department of theology, according to Prof. Timothy O'Meara, provost.

Joseph Blenkinsopp, Jr., professor of theology, has been named John A. O'Brien Professor of Old Testament Studies. This professorship is one of three chairs in Catholic theology in the department. Blenkinsopp, who joined the theology faculty in 1970, holds degrees from the University of London, the International Theological Institute of Turin, and the University of Oxford. A specialist in Old Testament studies, he has published numerous books and articles on biblical theology and for the last four summers has coordinated an archaelogical project at Capernaum, Israel.

Rev. Thomas F. C. O'Meara, O.P., professor of theology, has been named William K. Warren Professor of Catholic Theology. Father O'Meara, who joined the theology faculty in 1981, holds degrees from Saint Thomas College in River Forest, Ill., the Aquinas Institute and the University of Munich. A specialist in fundamental theology, the theology of Thomas Aquinas, and the philosophy and theology of the 19th and 20th centuries, Father O'Meara has written fifty articles and several books, most recently, Theology and Ministry.

These appointments become effective in September, 1985. The three John A. O'Brien chairs memorialize the priest-author who spent forty years teaching and writing at Notre Dame before his death in 1980. A popular Catholic apologist whose books, articles and pamphlets reached millions of readers, Father O'Brien was a leader of the Newman Club movement and an early advocate of the church renewal issuing from the Second Vatican Council.

The Warren chair in Catholic theology was established by a \$1 million gift to the University from William K. Warren of Tulsa, Okla. Warren, an oil executive, has been a member of the advisory council for Notre Dame's College of Business Administration since 1948. He received an honorary degree from the University in 1956.

wenig new development director for nyc

Mark L. Wenig, a 1974 Notre Dame graduate in communications, has been named the University's regional director of development in New York City. As one of six such directors, he will oversee development activities in nine Middle-Atlantic and New England states.

Wenig served for the last two years as U.S. marketing manager for Sadimax, Inc., a French electronics firm dealing in television and auto radio antennas. Before this he served as a sales representative of the French unit of Xerox Corporation in Paris, as a business development officer for Union Bank in Los Angeles and as a sales representative for Xerox in Los Angeles.

In addition to his Notre Dame studies, he completed a French language course at Middlebury College in Vermont and a management course at the Xerox Center in Leesburg, Virginia. He is an amateur radio license operator, a member of Alliance Francaise and the Foreign Policy Association of New York.

Vol. 14, No. 7 December 14, 1984

Notre Dame Report (USPS 7070-8000) is an official publication published fortnightly during the school year, monthly in the summer, by the University of Notre Dame, Department of Information Services. Second-class postage paid at Notre Dame, Ind. Postmaster: Please send address corrections to: Editor, Notre Dame Report, c/o Rm. 212, Administration Building, Notre Dame, IN 46556

© 1984 by the University of Notre Dame, Notre Dame, Ind. 46556. All rights reserved.



faculty notes

honors

Esmée Cromie Bellalta, associate professor of architecture, has been elected member-at-large of the Indiana Chapter of the American Society of Landscape Architects for 1985. She has also received a Kellogg Institute seed money grant for a project titled "Completing the Environment."

Maureen T. Hallinan, William P. and Hazel B. White professor of sociology, has been elected to the Council for the Methodology Section of the American Sociological Association. She has also been appointed to the editorial board of the Review of Educational Research.

James P. Sterba, associate professor of philosophy, has been appointed to a three-year term on the Committee on Publications and Research of the American Philosophical Association.

<u>J. Kerry Thomas</u>, Julius A. Nieuwland professor of chemistry, has been appointed to the nominating committee and the awards committee of the Radiation Research Society.

<u>Kathleen J. Turner</u>, assistant professor of communication and theatre, has been elected to the Speech Communication Association Nominating Committee for 1984-85.

activities

Kathleen A. Biddick, assistant professor of history, participated as an invited member at an American Historical Association seminar on "Quantification, Computers and Teaching History" held at Amherst College, Mass., Nov. 15-17. She chaired a session titled "Beginning at the Beginning" at that meeting.

Francis J. Castellino, dean of the College of Science and Kleiderer/Pezold professor of biochemistry, gave invited lectures on "Structure, Function and Activation of the Human Fibrinolytic System" at the Northwest Center for Medical Education, Indiana University--Gary, Oct. 23, and for the department of biochemistry, University of Colorado Medical Center, Denver, Nov. 12.

<u>James T. Cushing</u>, professor of physics, gave a presentation titled "The Bell Theorems: Determinism or Locality?" at a colloquium for the department of physics, DePauw University, Greencastle, Ind., Nov. 13.

<u>Guillermo J. Ferraudi</u>, associate professional specialist in the Radiation Laboratory, gave an invited talk titled "The Photoredox Chemistry of Radicals Derivated from Transition Metal Phthalocyanines: Its Relationship with Biphotonic Photochemsitry" at the Comisión Nacional de Energía Atómica, Buenos Aires, Argentina, Oct. 30.

<u>Denis Goulet</u>, O'Neill professor of education for justice and professor in the Kellogg Institute, was interviewed Nov. 16 by Jean Giroux of Radio Canada, Montreal, Quebec, on the Pastoral Letter on Catholic Social Teaching and the U.S. Economy.

Maureen T. Hallinan, William P. and Hazel B. White professor of sociology, presented a paper with Aage B. Sorenson of the department of sociology at Harvard University titled "Instructional Grouping and Mathematics Education." The paper was invited by the National Research Council of the National Academy of Science for a conference on Research in Math, Science and Technology Education, Washington, D.C., Oct. 8-9. She also presented a lecture titled "Recent Advances in Sociology of Education" at Marymount College, Tarrytown, N.Y., Oct. 9.

<u>Douglas Kinsey</u>, associate professor of art, art history and design, served as a visiting artist to the School of the Art Institute of Chicago, where he gave a public lecture Nov. 16 on his own direction in painting.

Rev. Edward A. Malloy, C.S.C., associate provost and associate professor of theology, was a participant in a radio talk-show interview Nov. 19 on "The Baby Fae Case" with station WAMJ. <u>Carol Ann Mooney</u>, associate professor of law, gave a panel presentation on "Medical Ethics: The Living Will" at the 1984 Governor's Conference on Aging, South Bend, Oct. 16.

Thomas J. Mueller, professor of aerospace and mechanical engineering, presented a seminar titled "Performance of Airfoils at Low Reynolds Numbers" at the University of Dayton (Ohio) Research Institute Nov. 15. He also presented a seminar titled "Experimental Studies of an Airfoil Section and Finite Wing at Low Reynolds Numbers" at the University of Maryland, College Park, Nov. 16.

Rev. Thomas F. C. O'Meara, O.P., professor of theology, gave a presentation on "Evangelization and the Kingdom of God" at Jesus Day IV, sponsored by the Archdiocese of Chicago, in October.

William A. O'Rourke, assistant professor of English, gave an invited lecture, "Clear and Effective Writing," at the annual meeting of the Blue Pencil Club, an educational seminar organized by the Ohio State University School of Journalism, held in Columbus Nov. 10.

Morris Pollard, director of Lobund Laboratory and professor emeritus of microbiology, presented a seminar on "Experimental Metastatic Prostate Cancer" at the Chicago Medical School, North Chicago, Ill., Nov. 8.

<u>Paul Roche</u>, poet-in-residence and visiting professor in the Program of Liberal Studies, participated in a symposium titled "Charleston, Sussex and the Bloomsbury Group" at the Meadows Gallery, Southern Methodist University, Dallas, Tex., Oct. 26 and 27. He visited Albion (Mich.) College Oct. 30 and 31, where he delivered three lectures: "A Guide Through the Ruins of Greek Tragedy," "Bloomsbury and Aesop," and "The Land of Legna," this last being a reading of his new extraterrestrial "mini-epic."

<u>Charles M. Rosenberg</u>, associate professor of art, art history and design, chaired a session of the Sixteenth Century Conference titled "Sixteenth Century at Table," held at Concordia Seminary, St. Louis, Mo., Oct. 26.

<u>J. Eric Smithburn</u>, professor of law, delivered lectures on the law of sentencing, probation and probation revocation to state trial judges from throughout the United States and abroad at the National Judicial College, University of Nevada at Reno, Oct. 15-19.

Andrew J. Sommese, professor of mathematics, gave a talk on "Quotients by ** x ** Actions" at the Oberwolfach Conference on Several Complex Variables held in Oberwolfach, West Germany, Aug. 25-30. He was the principal speaker at the Algebraic Geometry Conference held by the University of Warsaw on Lake Wigry in Poland, Sept. 6 to 14, and gave seven talks that constituted "A Survey of Vanishing Theorems on Complex Analytic Spaces" and one talk on "Hyperplane Sections of Algebraic Varieties" at that conference. Dr. Sommese gave an invited talk on "The Extension Problem for Hyperplane Sections" at the conference in Special Complex Variables in honor of Wilhelm Stoll held at Notre Dame Oct. 25-27.

<u>James P. Sterba</u>, associate professor of philosophy, presented a paper titled "The Poor Against the Rich: The Case for Actions Welfare Rights" at the Anglo-American Fulbright Conference held at the Centre for Philosophy and Public Affairs, St. Andrew's University, Scotland, Sept. 28 - Oct. 1. He presented a lead paper titled "Is There a Rationale for Punishment?" at a conference on the History and Philosophy of Punishment held at Marquette University, Milwaukee, Wis., Oct. 19-20. Dr. Sterba chaired the local arrangements committee for the meeting of the International Association for Philosophy of Law and Social Philosophy (American Section) held at Notre Dame Nov. 2-4, and presented a keynote paper entitled "Between MAD and Counterforce: In Search of a Morally and Strategically Sound Nuclear Defense Policy" at that meeting. He also presented a paper titled "Does Contemporary Moral Philosophy Need to Discover a Human Telos?" at a symposium on Alasdaire MacIntyre's After Virtue held at the meeting of the Indiana Philosophical Association, Indianapolis, Nov. 10.

<u>J. Kerry Thomas</u>, Julius Nieuwland professor of chemistry, presented an invited talk, "Photochemistry in Colloidal Clay Systems" at the Army Research Office meeting at Aberdeen, Md., Nov. 12-14.

Kathleen J. Turner, assistant professor of communication and theatre, gave a presentation titled "Guiding the Popular Consciousness: The Donahue Show on Vietnam" at the Speech Communication Association convention in Chicago, Ill., Nov.

Rev. Robert L. Wilken, professor of theology, gave a lecture on "Cyril of Scythopolis" at the Roman History Seminar (Arnaldo Momigliano), held at the University of Chicago Nov. 27.



summary of the board of trustees meeting november 16, 1984

- 1. Dr. Thomas P. Carney, Chairman of the Board of Trustees, called the meeting to order, and Rev. Richard V. Warner, C.S.C., offered the opening prayer.
- 2. Dr. Carney introduced seven new trustees: Mr. Thomas A. Coleman, Mr. Bernard J. Hank, Jr., Mr. Terrence E. Keating (ex officio), Mr. Terrence R. Keeley, Rev. William M. Lewers, C.S.C., Mr. Frank J. Pasquerilla and Dr. Kathleen M. Sullivan.
- 3. The minutes of the spring (May 4-5, 1984) meeting were approved.
- 4. Rev. Theodore M. Hesburgh, C.S.C., reporting on a meeting of the Fellows of the University, said the bylaws had been amended to provide for the position of Vice Chairman of the Board of Trustees.
- 5. In the report of the Nominating Committee, Dr. Carney said that two persons had been nominated for Board memberships and that a third had been designated as an alternative nominee. The new trustees will not be announced until they agree to serve.
- 6. Mr. Andrew J. McKenna presented the report of the Ad Hoc Organization Development Committee.
- 7. The report of the Academic and Faculty Affairs Committee was presented by Dr. Martha E. Peterson. She said committee members had visited the Department of Government and International Studies and Psychology as well as the Memorial Library. Matters discussed by the committee included faculty and staff health benefits, sabbatical leave policy, preceptorships for junior faculty and the curriculum committee report.
- 8. Professor Timothy O'Meara, Provost, explained how the PACE Report is being implemented. He reviewed revisions in the Academic Council which was then formally approved by the Board of Trustees.
- 9. The trustees approved a resolution honoring the memory of trustee emeritus Alfred C. Stepan, Jr., who died Oct. 1, 1984.
- 10. Mr. Anthony F. Earley presented the report of the Student Affairs Committee. The ensuing discussion dealt with the alcohol policy, women's role on the campus, the social scene generally, and a proposal for campus townhouses. Mr. Philip Hawley urged a University admissions policy which would lead to equal access for men and women.
- $11.\,$ Rev. Donald P. McNeill, C.S.C., presented an overview of the Center for Social Concerns and its programs.
- 12. Rev. David T. Tyson, C.S.C., described the organization, programs and personnel of the Student Affairs division from his perspective as its new vice president.
- 13. The Alcohol Report and reaction to it were reviewed by Rev. E. William Beauchamp, C.S.C., and Father Tyson. They said a number of colleges and universities have inquired about it, and some have adopted it substantially as their own.
- 14. In a presentation on campus social space, Father Tyson described preliminary planning for a major addition to and a complete renovation of the LaFortune Student Center.
- 15. Professor O'Meara reviewed faculty appointments of note and the recent investiture of scholars in eight endowed chairs. He also discussed comparative data on faculty salaries and the reallocation of space in the Memorial Library.

- 16. Mr. Frank E. Sullivan presented the report of the University Relations Committee. The Committee was briefed on the University's new Department of Community Relations, recent series of regional trustees' meetings, and a projected fund-raising campaign.
- 17. The objectives, financial goal and timetable for the projected campaign were reviewed by Dr. William P. Sexton, Vice President for University Relations.
- 18. Mr. Terrence E. Keating, president of the Notre Dame Alumni Association, made a slide presentation describing its long-range planning program.
- 19. Rev. Edmund P. Joyce, C.S.C., Executive Vice President, reviewed the chronology of developments concerning the televising of college football, litigation and court decision.
- 20. Dean Michael J. Loux of the College of Arts and Letters presented a paper on the impact of computers and technology generally on teaching, scholarship and research in the liberal arts.
- 21. Mr. Jerome W. Van Gorkom presented the report of the Financial Affairs Committee. He expressed guarded optimism that the University will emerge from the current fiscal year "in the black."
- 22. The report of the Investment Committee was presented by Mr. Robert K. Wilmouth.
- 23. Mr. Thomas J. Mason, Vice President for Business Affairs, itemized current campus construction and renovation projects.
- 24. The trustees' attention was called to pending litigation involving the University.
- 25. Board of Trustees committee assignments were circulated.
- 26. Two technical resolutions were approved.

James E. Murphy Associate Vice President Briefing Officer

library hours - christmas vacation

_	Memorial Library		Science & Engineering
<u>Date</u>	Building	Public Services	<u>Libraries</u>
Had Dos 10 through			
Wed., Dec. 19 through	8 a m =10 p m	8 a m _5 n m	8 a.m5 p.m.
Fri., Dec. 21 Sat., Dec. 22	8 a.m10 p.m. 9 a.m 5 p.m.	8 a.m5 p.m. Closed	Closed
Sun., Dec. 23	1 p.m 5 p.m.	Closed	Closed
Mon., Dec. 24 and	1 p.m 3 p.m.	Crosed	Crosed
Tue., Dec. 25	Closed	Closed	Closed
Wed., Dec. 26	9 a.m 5 p.m.	Closed	10 a.m4 p.m.*
Thu., Dec. 27	9 a.m 5 p.m.	9 a.m5 p.m.**	10 a.m4 p.m.*
Fri. Dec. 28	9 a.m 5 p.m.	9 a.m5 p.m.**	10 a.m4 p.m.*
Sat., Dec. 29	9 a.m 5 p.m.	Closed	Closed
Sun., Dec. 30	1 p.m 5 p.m.	Closed	Closed
Mon., Dec. 31 and	2 pt 0 pt	0.0500	010364
Tue., Jan. 1	Closed	Closed	Closed
Wed., Jan. 2 through			
Fri., Jan. 4	8 a.m10 p.m.	8 a.m5 p.m.	8 a.m5 p.m.
Sat., Jan. 5	9 a.m10 p.m.	9 a.m5 p.m.**	Closed
Sun., Jan. 6	1 p.m10 p.m.	Closed	Closed
Mon., Jan. 7 through			
Fri., Jan. 11	8 a.m10 p.m.	8 a.m5 p.m.	8 a.m5 p.m.
Sat., Jan. 12	9 a.m10 p.m.	9 a.m5 p.m.**	Closed
Sun., Jan. 13	1 p.m10 p.m.	Closed	Closed
Mon., Jan. 14 and			
Tue., Jan. 15	8 a.m10 p.m.	8 a.m5 p.m.	8 a.m5 p.m.
Wed., Jan. 16	Return to regular	schedule.	

* The Architecture Library will be closed.

^{**} The following public service areas will be closed: Audio Learning Center, International Documentation Center, Medieval Institute Library, Rare Book Room, and Reserve Book Room.

advanced studies

information circulars

Additional information on all circulars listed may be obtained by calling Extension 7432. Please refer to the circular number.

humanities

See complete information regarding the information circulars listed below under the category of Social Sciences.

Harry S. Truman Library Institute Tom L. Evans Research Grant No. FY85-315

University of Pennsylvania Independent Fellowships No. FY85-316

Council for International Exchange of Scholars Fulbright Supplemental Grants: Germany

No. FY85-310

Program:

Up to 25 partial-maintenance awards are available for professors in faculty exchanges with German institutions or on sabbatical.

Deadline: February 1, 1985

For Further Information Contact:

Council for International Exchange of Scholars 11 Dupont Circle, Suite 300 Washington, DC 20036 (202) 833-4950

(From 1984 ARIS)

Council for International Exchange of Scholars Fulbright Summer Seminar in Germany

No. FY85-308

Program:

Twenty-five awards are available to American college and university teachers for a sixweek seminar, to be conducted in German, which will examine from an interdisciplinary perspective the political, social, economic, and cultural institutions of the Federal Republic of Germany, including Berlin. Applicants must be U.S. citizens and hold the Ph.D. or its equivalent. Applications are especially invited from teachers of German language, literature, and civilization. Other scholars in the social sciences and humanities who have a particular professional interest in the Federal Republic of Germany are also invited to apply. Fluency in German is required. Grantees will receive round-trip transportation to and from Germany and a per diem allowance to cover costs of meals, hotel accommodations, local travel, and incidental expenses.

Deadline: February 1, 1985

For Further Information Contact:

Council for International Exchange of Scholars 11 Dupont Circle, Suite 300 Washington, DC 20036 (202) 833-4950

(From 1984 ARIS)

Council for International Exchange of Scholars Fulbright Travel Awards to France and Germany

No. FY85-309

Program:

Travel awards are available for lecturing or research in any field within either country. For France, preference is given to candidates with confirmed invitations from French institutions. For Germany, preference is given to lecturers and researchers receiving stipends from German institutions or other sources.

Deadline: February 1, 1985

For Further Information Contact:

Council for International Exchange of Scholars 11 Dupont Circle, Suite 300 Washington, DC 20036 (202) 833-4950

(From 1984 ARIS)

Fine Arts Work Center in Provincetown Fine Arts Work Center Fellowships

No. FY85-298

Program:

Monthly stipends plus living and studio space at the Center are awarded principally to emerging professional candidates in the visual arts and literary arts. The Work Center session, which runs from October 1 to May 1, allows artists and writers to work independently and/or under consultation with the Center's staff as well as visiting creative professionals. The Center provides equipment of a general nature; specialized equipment must be provided by the Fellow. As funding and space limitation are critical, the Center's program cannot accept applications for critical writing, journalism, or filmmaking.

Deadline: February 1, 1985

For Further Information Contact:

Fine Arts Work Center in Provincetown Jim Potter, Director Box 565 24 Pearl Street Provincetown, MA 02657 (617) 487-9960

(From 1984 ARIS)

Jacksonville University 15th Annual Playwriting Contest

No. FY85-299

Program:

One or more awards totaling a minimum of \$1,000 and production of selected original, as yet unproduced plays. There is no restriction on who may apply; scripts may be full-length or one-act. Potential applicants should enclose a stamped, self-addressed envelope when requesting contest rules.

Deadline: January 2, 1985

For Further Information Contact:

Jacksonville University Dr. Davis Sikes, Director 15th Annual Playwriting Contest College of Fine Arts Jacksonville, FL 32211 (909) 744-3950, Ext. 374

(From 1984 ARIS)

Millay Colony for the Arts, Inc. Residencies

No. FY85-301

Program:

Residencies of one month, including housing, studio space, and food, are available to visual artists, writers, and composers. Applicants will be selected on the basis of samples of their work.

Deadline:

February 1, May 1 and September 1, 1985*

For Further Information Contact:

Millay Colony for the Arts, Inc. Steepletop Austerlitz, NY 12017 (518) 392-3103

*February 1 deadline is for residencies from June, 1985, to September, 1985.

(From 1984 ARIS)

National Endowment for the Humanities Fellowships for Translators

No. FY85-297

Program:

Fellowships are available to published translators of creative literature to enable them to set aside time for specific translation projects from other languages into English. Preference will be given to translators who have published original creative work and to projects for translations of work not previously translated, including work of intrin-sic literary value from languages not commonly translated. Eligible applicants must have either published a translation of a novel or of a volume of 50 or more pages of fiction or poetry, published a book-length translation of a work of literary merit, or published a total of 50 pages of translations, of creative literature in literary magazines, anthologies, or books. Publication must have taken place after January 1, 1970. Applications will be accepted from individuals only. Anyone who has received a Literature Program fellowship in translation or creative writing since January 1, 1982 is not eligible to apply in this category. Additionally, applications for both creative writing fellowships and translation fellowships will not be accepted from an individual in the same year.

Fellowships for translators are for \$10,000 or \$20,000, depending on the length and scope of the project. Applicants must specify one of these two amounts on the application form. Fellowships generally will be awarded for the

amount requested or not at all. Individuals interested in translating plays should not apply here, but should contact the Endowment's Theater Program instead.

Deadline: January 10, 1985

For Further Information Contact:

National Endowment for the Arts Literature Program Fellowships Room 723 Ruth Thompson, Program Specialist 1100 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW Washington, DC 20506 (202) 682-5451

(From 1984 ARIS)

National Endowment for the Humanities Fellowship Support to Centers for Advanced Study

No. FY85-303

Program:

Centers for advanced study, research libraries and other such institutions independent of universities may apply for funds with which to offer fellowships for research and study in the humanities.

Deadline:

February 1, 1985

For Further Information Contact:

National Endowment for the Humanities Division of Fellowships and Seminars Room 316 1100 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW Washington, DC 20506 (202) 786-0466

(From 1984 ARIS)

National Endowment for the Humanities Humanities Projects in Media

No. FY85-304

Program:

Outright, matching, and combined grants support the development of quality radio, television, and film programming in the humanities. Such projects should be designed to

stimulate in large general audiences an understanding of and appreciation for the essential activities, knowledge, and methods of the humanities. The Media program is especially interested in projects which translate into television and radio the acknowledged literary, philosophical, and historical masterworks of civilization. There must be an active collaboration between production personnel and humanities scholars with expert knowledge in the subject area, particularly in the formative stage. All television projects should be designed to reach national audiences. Radio projects of local or regional interest are eligible for funding. Support is provided for planning, scripwriting, and/or production. Planning grants are limited to a maximum of \$20,000. There are no specific ceilings on scriptwriting or production grants. Any group of scholars of professionals with experience in the media and the humanities is eligible to apply. Applicants may work with or within a non-profit institution or organization, such as a production facility or cultural organization, or may form their own non-profit independent production group for the express purpose of developing a specific project. Funding is also available for projects to develop programming designed primarily for children and youth. Additional guidelines for such projects may be obtained from the Media Program. Deadlines for that program are the same as for the regular Media program.

Deadline: January 30 and July 30, 1985

For Further Information Contact:

National Endowment for the Humanities Media Program James Dougherty 1100 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW Washington, DC 20506 (202) 786-0278

(From 1984 ARIS)

National Endowment for the Humanities Program Development (Including Libraries)

No. FY85-305

Program: Grants in this category support new ways of presenting the humanities to the general adult public. This program supports projects that fall outside other guidelines of the Endowment. Proposals in two areas are especially encouraged: (1) history, theory, and criticism of the arts; and (2) the interpreta-tion of literature. Projects highlighting the forthcoming Bicentennial of the U.S. Constitution are also encouraged. As the "Humanities Projects in Libraries" program has now been integrated into this program, proposals submitted by libraries should be submitted by the Program Development dead-

lines and will compete with all other applications submitted to this program during a particular grant-making cycle. Two categories of support are offered: Planning Grants, which are limited to a maximum of \$15,000 and six months' duration and for which no cost-share is required; and 2) Implementation Grants, which range from \$15,000 to \$20,000 for periods of one to three years and require a cost-share of 20% (30% in the case of renewals). It is strongly suggested that a preliminary statement be submitted at least four weeks before the deadline for formal applications.

Deadline:

February 6 and August 6, 1985

For Further Information Contact:

National Endowment for the Humanities Special Projects Leon Bramson 1100 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW Washington, DC 20506 (202)786-0271

(From 1984 ARIS)

National Endowment for the Humanities Research Conferences

No. FY85-306

Program:

Grants ranging from \$2,500 to \$10,000 support a limited number of conferences, symposia, and workshops to enable scholars to discuss and advance the current state of research on a particular topic or to consider means of improving conditions for research or inquiry.

Deadline: February 15 and September 15, 1985

For Further Information Contact:

National Endowment for the Humanities Eugene Sterud Division of Research Programs Basic Research Program Room 319 1100 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW Washington, DC 20506 (202) 786-0207

(From 1984 ARIS)

National Endowment for the Humanities Travel to Collections

No. FY85-307

Program:

Grants of \$500 are available to American humanities scholars to enable them to travel to use the research collections of libraries, archives, museums, or other repositories to consult research materials of fundamental importance for the progress of their scholarly work. These grants support travel only within North America and Western Europe. Preference will be given to applicants who have no other source of funding for the research trip proposed and whose costs amount to at least \$500.

Deadline:

January 15 and September 15, 1985

For Further Information Contact:

National Endowment for the Humanities Eric Juengst Division of Research Programs Basic Research Program Room 319 1100 Pennslyvania Avenue, NW Washington, DC 20506 (202) 786-0207

(From 1984 ARIS)

Southern Anthropological Society The James Mooney Award

No. FY85-312

Program:

One prize of \$1,000 plus publication by the University of Tennessee press for a booklength manuscript that describes and interprets the people or culture of a distinctive New World population. The competition is primarily for anthropological studies, but historical or folkloristic studies, especially those with interdisciplinary approaches, are welcomed.

Deadline:

December 31, 1984

For Further Information Contact:

Southern Anthropological Society Dr. Harriet J. Kupferer, Chairman Department of Anthropology University of North Carolina Greensboro, NC 27412-5001 (919) 379-5132

(From 1984 ARIS)

Yaddo Guest Stay at Yaddo

No. FY85-302

Program:

Room and board for up to two months at Yaddo, a retreat for writers, visual artists, and composers desiring to work outside their normal environment.

Deadline:

January 15 and August 1, 1985

For Further Information Contact:

Yaddo Curtis Harnack Executive Director Box 395 Saratoga Springs, NY 12866 (518) 584-0746

(From 1984 ARIS)

fine and performing arts

See complete information regarding the information circulars listed below under the category of Humanities

Fine Arts Work Center in Provincetown Fine Arts Work Center Fellowships No. FY85-298

Yaddo Guest Stay at Yaddo No. FY85-302

social sciences

See complete information regarding the information circulars listed below under the category of Humanities ${\sf L}$

Southern Anthropological Society The James Mooney Award No. FY85-312

Institute for the Study of World Politics Fellowships

No. FY85-311

Program:

Approximately 25 fellowships are available to postdoctoral scholars and to doctoral candidates conducting dissertation work who are examining political, economic and social issues that affect the security, well-being, and dignity of the peoples of the world. Awards are for periods of three to nine months, may include funds for travel or other field-research costs if these are essential to the study, and may be combined with support from other sources.

Deadline: February 15, 1985

For Further Information Contact:

Institute for the Study of World Politics 1985-1986 Fellowship Competition 823 United Nations Plaza Suite 207 New York, NY 10017 (212) 661-5900

(From 1984 ARIS)

Harry S Truman Library Institute Tom L. Evans Research Grant

No. FY85-315

Program:

One grant of \$12,000 for a postdoctoral scholar working on the period of the Truman presidency or on the career of Harry S. Truman and who wishes to use the resources of the Truman library.

Deadline: February 1, 1985

For Further Information Contact:

Harry S. Truman Library Institute Independence Missouri 64050 (816) 833-1400

(From 1984 ARIS)

University of Pennsylvania Independent Research Fellowships

No. FY85-316

Program:

One or several fellowships carrying stipends of up to \$10,000 for terms of varying lengths are available for faculty members on leave or independent scholars for research at the Center on a project of the Fellow's own design. Preference will be given to project that analyze significant new problems or explore previously neglected local materials. Recipients will be expected to spend all or part of the term of appointment in residence and to participate in Center seminars.

Deadline: January 15, 1985

For Further Information Contact:

University of Pennsylvania Attn: Sharon Holt The Philadelphia Center for Early American Studies 3810 Walnut Street/BF Philadelphia, PA 19104 (215) 898-3487

(From 1984 ARIS)

general

Delta Kappa Gamma Society International The Educator's Award

No. FY85-317

Program:

An annual award of \$1,500 to one or two women authors of a book which is likely to influence thought and action in education everywhere in today's society. In the case of dual authorship, the award will be divided. Methods and skills books, textbooks, unpublished manuscripts, and books written specifically for children will not be considered. The book must have been copyrighted in its first edition or first English translation during the previous calendar year. Authors must be citizens of Canada, Costa Rica, El Salvador, Finland, Great Britain, Guatemala, Iceland, Mexico, The Netherlands, Norway, Puerto Rico, Sweden, or the United States.

Deadline: January 2, 1985

For Further Information Contact:

Delta Kappa Gamma Society International International Headquarters Box 1589 Austin, TX 78767 (512) 478-5748

(From 1984 ARIS)

W.K. Kellogg Foundation Correction: Kellogg National Fellowship Program

No. FY85-318

Program:

This program was described in FY85-079 with a deadline of October 15. The correct deadline for 1984 is December 31. The Foundation did not inform us of this change in deadline when we updated the program earlier this year. We thank one of our subscribers for bringing the error to our attention.

Deadline: December 31, 1984

For Further Information Contact:

W.K. Kellogg Foundation Dr. Larraine Matusak Director 400 North Avenue Battle Creek, MI 49016 (616) 968-1611

(From 1984 ARIS)

Translation Center Awards

No. FY85-314

Program:

Awards of \$1,000 to translators who have completed a substantial part of a book-length translation and who have received a serious indication of interest from a publisher. This interest is generally expressed by an option letter or by a contract. The award is paid directly to the translator and is not an advance against royalties.

Deadline: January 15, 1985

For Further Information Contact:

Translation Center Awards Secretary 307A Mathematics Building Columbia University New York, NY 10027 (212) 280-2305

(From 1984 ARIS)

The Tinker Foundation, Inc. Tinker Postdoctoral Fellowship ProgramIbero-American Studies

No. FY85-313

Program:

Up to eight annual stipends of \$18,000 plus \$2,000 for traveling expenses are awarded each year to support research projects concerning Latin America, Portugal, or Spain. The program affords the opportunity to do research in the Foundation's areas of interest: social sciences, marine sciences, and international relations. Its primary objective is to foster intellectual growth by encouraging field research which will have significant theoretical implications within or between disciplines or for public policy. Candidates are required to select a senior consultant who may represent the second discipline in which they will be working, and to affiliate themselves with an institution other than their home university. The Fellowships are for individuals who have completed their doctoral studies no less than three years but no more than ten years prior to the time of application. Citizens and permanent residents of the U.S., Canada, the Latin American countries, Portugal, and Spain are eligible. U.S. citizens and others with a Ph.D. from a U.S. university may do their research in an appropriate country of their choice; non-U.S. citizens who do not hold a U.S. doctorate may use the Fellowship only at a U.S. institution. Each applicant must have a letter of recommendation sent directly to the Foundation by February 1.

Deadline: January 15, 1985

For Further Information Contact:

The Tinker Foundation, Inc. Dr. Kenneth Maxwell Program Director 645 Madison Avenue New York, NY 10022 (212) 421-6858

(From 1984 ARIS)

current publications and other scholarly works

Current publications should be mailed to the Division of Research and Sponsored Programs, Room 314, Administration Building.

COLLEGE OF ARTS AND LETTERS

Art, Art History and Design

Geoffrion, Moira M.

M.M. Geoffrion. 1984. One Sculpture and One Drawing. Elkhart Regional Show (Juried by prominent Art historian and critic J. Kind and gallery director P. King), Midwest Museum of American Art, Elkhart, Indiana.

Vogl, Donald G.

D.G. Vogl. 1984. Acrylic Paintings. One Man Exhibition, Northern Indiana Art Association, Munster, Indiana.

D.G. Vogl. 1984. Acrylic, Phoenix; Watercolor, Natural Bridge-Utah. 6th Elkhart Juried Regional Exhibition, Midwest Museum of American Art, Elkhart, Indiana.

English

Kline, Edward A.

E.A. Kline. 1984. Computers in the Humanities: Applications in Research and Instruction. Pages 9-23 in, C.H. Gilliland and M. Browne, eds., Computers and the Humanities. U.S. Naval Academy.

Government and International Studies

Dallmayr, Fred R.

F.R. Dallmayr. 1984. Phenomenology and Marxism in Historical Perspective. Pages 2-30 in, J.M. Broekman and A. Pazanin, eds., Phenomenology and Marxism. Routledge & Kegan Paul, London, England.

Dowty, Alan K.

A.K. Dowty. 1984. The Impact of the 1973
War on the U.S. Approach to the Middle
East. Pages 251-269 in, N. Oren, ed.,
When Patterns Change: Turning Points in
International Politics. St. Martin's
Press, New York, and The Magnes Press,
Jerusalem.

Music

Buranskas, Karen L.

K.L. Buranskas. 1984. Soloist Performance. Dvorak Cello Concerto, with Allen Park Symphony Orchestra. (Zuohaung Ches of China as conductor). Allen Park, Michi-

K.L. Buranskas. 1984. Guest Soloist Performance. Dvorak Cello Concerto, with Allen Park Symphony Orchestra. (Zuohuang Chen of China as guest conductor). Wyandotte, Michigan.

Program of Liberal Studies

- Smith, Janet E. J.E. Smith. 1984. Review of M.S. Peck's, The Road Less Traveled. Fidelity 3(11): 27-29.
 - J.E. Smith. 1984. Review of M.S. Peck's
 - People of the Lie. Fidelity 3(11):27-29. J.E. Smith. 1984. Review of M. Daly's, Pure Lust. <u>Catholicism in Crisis</u> 2(11): 33-35.

Theology

Coll, CSJ, Regina A. R.A. Coll, CSJ. 1984. Sin and Morality in Feminist Perspective. Vidyajyoti: Journal of Theological Reflection, Delhi 3:135-142.

Tilliette, SJ, Xavier

X. Tilliette, SJ. 1984. L'Art Des Confins Mélanges offerts à Maurice de Gandillac. Presses Universitaires de France, Paris, France. Pages 643-656.

Ulrich, Eugene C.

E.C. Ulrich. 1984. Horizons of Old Testament Textual Research at the Thirtieth Anniversary of Qumran Cave 4. Catholic Biblical Quarterly 46:613-636.

COLLEGE OF SCIENCE

Biology

Munstermann, Leonard E.

L.E. Munstermann. 1984. Linkage Map of the Yellow Fever Mosquito, Aedes aegypti (2 N = 6). Genetic Maps 3:324-329.

Rai, Karamjit S.

K.S. Rai and D.A. Sherron. 1984. Genetics of Speciation in the Aedes (Stegomyia) scutellaris Group (Diptera: Culicidae) 3. The Genetic Relationship of Aedes cooki with Aedes kesseli. Journal of Medical Entomology 21(5):540-547.

Chemistry

Schuler, Robert H.

*G.N.R. Tripathi and R.H. Schuler. 1984. The Resonance Raman Spectrum of the Aniline Radical Cation. Chemical Physics Letters 110(5):542-545.

*Under the Radiation Laboratory

Earth Sciences

Rigby, Jr., J. Keith J.K. Rigby, Jr., J.D. Corrigan and R.E. Sloan. 1984. Numeric Methods, Multituberculates (Mammalia), Biostratigraphic Implications for the Hell Creek Formation and the Cretaceous/Tertiary Extinction Event. Geological Society of America Program with Abstracts 16(6):635.

Physics

Lundeen, Stephen R.

J.J. Bollinger, S.R. Lundeen and F.M. Pipkin. 1984. Measurement of the Lamb Shift in the n = 4 State of He^+ . Physical Review A, 30:2170.

S.L. Palfrey and S.R. Lundeen. 1984. Measurement of High-Angular-Momentum Fine Structure in Helium: An Experimental Test of Long-Range Electromagnetic Forces. Physical Review Letters 53:1141.

COLLEGE OF ENGINEERING

Aerospace and Mechanical Engineering

Kanury, A. Murty
K.T. Yang, J.R. Lloyd, A.M. Kanury and K.
Satoh. 1984. Modeling of Turbulent
Buoyant Flows in Aircraft Cabins. Combustion Science and Technology 39:107-

Yang, Kwang-tzu
K.T. Yang, J.R. Lloyd, A.M. Kanury and K. Satoh. 1984. Modeling of Turbulent Buoyant Flows in Aircraft Cabins. Combustion Science and Technology 39:107-118.

Lee, Lawrence H.N.

L.H.N. Lee. 1984. On Penny-Shaped Crack at an Ice-Substrate Interface. Proceedings of Application of Fracture Mechanics to Materials and Structures. Pages 1085-

Chemical Engineering

Wolf, Eduardo E.

L.A. Amestica and E.E. Wolf. 1984. Supercritical Toluene and Ethanol Extraction of an Illinois #6 Coal. Fuel 63:227-230. J. Regalbuto, D.J. Kaul and E.E. Wolf.

1984. Transient FTIR Studies of the CO- $NO-O_2$ Reaction on Pt/SiO $_2$. Proceedings of the 8th International Congress on Catalysis, Berlin, West Germany. Pages 253-263.

D. Kaul and E.E. Wolf. 1984. Transient FTIR Studies of Surface Reaction Dynamics, I; CO Oxidation on Pt/SiO₂ and Pd/SiO₂ Catalysts. Journal of Catalysis 89:348-

N.C. Saha and E.E. Wolf. 1984. CO Hydro-genation on a Pd/ZSM-5 Supported Catalyst. Journal of Applied Catalysis 12:386-404. S.J. Yuh and E.E. Wolf. 1984. Kinetic

and FTIR Studies of the Sodium Catalyzed

Steam Gasification of Coal Chars. Fuel 63:1604-1609.

S.J. Yuh and E.E. Wolf. 1984. FTIR Studies of the Effect of Alkali Metal Salts and Alkali Metal Chlorides in the Gasification of Coal Chars. Preprint of American Chemical Society Division of Fuel Chemistry 29(2):206-211.

Civil Engineering

Jennings, Aaron A. A.A. Jennings and P. Suresh. 1984. Interactive Risk Analysis for Hazardous Waste Disposal Alternatives. Pages 190-194 in, W.E. Carroll, ed., Proceedings of the 2nd National Conference on Microcomputers in Civil Engineering.

RADIATION LABORATORY

Tripathi, G.N.R.

G.N.R. Tripathi and R.H. Schuler. 1984. The Resonance Raman Spectrum of the Aniline Radical Cation. Chemical Physics Letters 110(5):542-545.

G.N.R. Tripathi and M.R. Fisher. 1984. Time-Resolved Resonance Raman Spectra and Decay Kinetics of Triplet Anthracene in Fluid Media. Chemical Physical Letters 105:297.

Das, Paritosh K.
P.K. Das and G.W. Griffin. 1984. Laser
Flash Photolysis Study of Photochemical Ring Opening of 2,3-Di-2-naphthyloxiranes and Resultant Ylide Behaviors. Journal of Organic Chemistry 49:3452.

closing dates for selected sponsored programs

Proposals must be submitted to the Office of Research and Sponsored Programs seven calendar days prior to the deadline dates listed below.

Information Circular Number	Agency	Programs	Application Closing Dates
	HUMANITIES		
FY85-310	Council for International Exchange of Scholars	Fulbright Supplemental Grants: Germany	February 1, 1985
FY85-308	Council for International Exchange of Scholars	Fulbright Summer Seminar in Germany	February 1, 1985
FY85-309	Council for International Exchange of Scholars	Fulbright Travel Awards to France and Germany	February 1, 1985
FY85-298 FY85-299 FY85-301 FY85-297 FY85-303	Fine Arts Work Center in Provincetown Jacksonville University Millay Colony for the Arts, Inc. National Endowment for the Humanities National Endowment for the Humanities	Fine Arts Work Center Fellowships 15th Annual Playwriting Contest Residencies Fellowships for Translators Fellowship Support to Centers for Advanced Study	February 1, 1985 January 2, 1985 February 1, 1985 January 10, 1985 February 1, 1985
FY85-304 FY85-305	National Endowment for the Humanities National Endowment for the Humanities	Humanities Projects in Media Program Development (Including Libraries)	January 30, 1985 February 6, 1985
FY85-306 FY85-307 FY85-312 FY85-302	National Endowment for the Humanities National Endowment for the Humanities Southern Anthropological Society Yaddo	Research Conferences Travel to Collections The James Mooney Award Guest Stay at Yaddo	February 15, 1985 January 15, 1985 December 31, 1984 January 15, 1985
	SOCIAL SCIENCES		
FY85-311	Institute for the Study of World Politics	Fellowships	Feburary 15, 1985
FY85-315 FY85-316	Harry S. Truman Library Institute University of Pennsylvania	Tom L. Evans Research Grant Independent Research Fellowships	February 1, 1985 January 15, 1985
	GENERAL		
FY85-317	Delta Kappa Gamma Society International	The Educator's Award	January 2, 1985
FY85-318 FY85-314 FY85-313	W.K. Kellogg Foundation Translation Center The Tinker Foundation, Inc.	Kellogg National Fellowship Program Awards Tinker Postdoctoral Fellowship Program-Ibero-American Studies	December 31, 1984 January 15, 1985 January 15, 1985

notre dame report

An official publication of the University of Notre Dame, Department of Public Relations and Information. Individual copies are available in the Notre Dame Hammes Bookstore at 50 cents each. Mail subscriptions are \$10 per year. Back copies are available through the mail at 70 cents each.

Bernadette Zoss, Editor Barbara Stevens, Layout Publications and Graphic Services 415 Administration Building Notre Dame, Ind. 46556 (219) 239-5337